AGREEMENT BETWEEN

ALMONT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION

and

ALMONT EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

2008 - 2009

			R
			10
		,	1
			护
	•		

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article I	Recognition & Collection of Dues	1
Article II	School District Rights	4
Article III	No Strike Clause	5
Article IV	Teacher Responsibility	5
Article V	Association & Teacher Rights	5
Article VI	Representation	11
Article VII	Grievance Procedure	11
Article VIII	Tenure Disputes: Staff Reduction & Restoration	14
Article IX	Teacher Evaluation	18
Article X	Disciplinary Procedures	20
Article XI	Compensation	21
Article XII	Calendar, Schedules & Hours	22
Article XIII	Paid for Leave Time	30
Article XIV	Teacher's Authority	32
Article XV	Association/Board Cooperation	34
Article XVI	Leaves of Absence	35
Article XVII	Retirement, Resignation & Physical Examinations	39
Article XVIII	Early Retirement	41
Article XIX	Fringe Benefits	41
Article XX	District Central Bank	46
Article XXI	Term of Agreement	47
Schedule A	Salary	48
Schedule B	Extracurricular Duties	51
Schedule C	Related Duties of Teachers	54
Schedule D	Observation/Evaluation Report Form	56

Section 7:

Each side will bear the full costs for its side of the arbitration and will pay one-half (1/2) of the costs for the neutral Arbitrator.

Section 8:

Any grievance arising under this Agreement and properly processed under the procedure herein provided shall be considered a live grievance until finally disposed of under the terms of this contract, regardless of whether the term of this Agreement has expired during the interim.

Section 9:

The Association will develop a mutually agreeable form to ensure uniformity and to expedite the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE VIII Tenure Disputes: Staff Reduction and Restoration

Section 1:

Disputes subject to appeal to the Tenure Commission may, at the option of the affected teacher, be submitted instead to a grievance procedure. In the event that a teacher, electing grievance procedure, subsequently decides to appeal to the Tenure Commission, such appeal shall automatically and effectively stop the process of the grievance procedure at whatever stage it might meanwhile have reached, and in such case, the Association shall make the Board whole for all filing fees to the American Arbitration Association and Arbitrator's fee, if any, which might have been incurred during the interim.

Section 2:

The evaluations of employees hired prior to July 1, 2002, may be subject to the grievance procedure. It is understood and agreed that the Board shall be bound to grant second, third or fourth year probation, or outright tenure, to any probationary teacher who is rated satisfactory and adequate on all evaluations during the current year's probation. The evaluations of employees hired after July 1, 2002, are not subject to the grievance procedure during their probationary period.

Section 3:

A. No teacher shall be discharged or laid-off pursuant to a necessary reduction in personnel unless there is a substantial decrease in the students enrolled in the School District, or there is a substantial

decrease in the revenues or substantial increase in necessary expenditures of the School District.

- B. PRIOR TO A CHANGE THERE WILL BE CONSULTATION WITH THE ASSOCIATION.
- C. The order of the reduction shall be:
 - 1. Teachers not holding a regular Michigan provisional or permanent certificate will be laid-off first, provided there are qualified, certified teachers to replace and perform all of the needed teaching duties of the laid-off teacher(s).
 - 2. If reduction is still necessary, probationary teachers with the least seniority in the Almont Community School District will then be laid-off, provided there are qualified and certified teachers to replace and perform all the needed teaching duties of the laid-off teachers(s).
 - 3. If further reduction is still necessary, tenured teachers with the least seniority in the Almont Community School District will then be laid-off, provided there are qualified and certified teachers to replace and perform all the needed teaching duties of the laid-off teachers(s).
- D. Qualifications defined:
 - 1. Teachers will comply with all state and federal laws regarding teacher qualifications.
- E. Seniority and recall rights shall continue until:
 - 1. A teacher is recalled or;
 - 2. A teacher declines recall to a one-year, full-time position that has been offered by June 30th for the following year.
 - A teacher who declines a one-year, full-time position, per #2 will be reduced to 0 years of seniority and relinquish recall rights pursuant to the State Tenure Act.
- F. Any lay-off pursuant to this Agreement shall automatically terminate the individual's employment contract. However, the employee's insurance coverage shall remain intact for three months after lay-off.
- G. Any teacher with greater seniority who would volunteer to accept lay-off in order that a teacher with lesser seniority might continue employment with the Almont Community Schools shall request such, in writing, through the

Superintendent and the Association President by April 1st of each year. When the parties are in receipt of the request, the senior teacher shall be notified by the Superintendent of lay-off. Lay-offs in this provision shall be for a full school year.

Furthermore, should the volunteer choose not to exercise his rights for Unemployment Compensation, and so indicate to the Superintendent, in writing, by September 30th of each year, the Board will furnish the medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits enjoyed by the regularly employed staff for the first full year of lay-off.

By April 1st of each year, the teacher that volunteered for lay-off shall indicate their willingness to continue active employment for the following year and shall be considered a member of the staff for the specific building that he would have served for purpose of a job selection for the following year. In the event the teacher with greater seniority does not continue employment, the position shall be declared vacant.

- H. Class schedules shall be adjusted and involuntary transfers shall be made to cause higher senior persons to be retained and least senior persons to be laid-off, provided that if a vacancy occurs during a school year the employer may, but is not obligated, to make an involuntary transfer to recall a laid-off teacher until the end of said year.
- I. Teachers on lay-off shall be recalled in the inverse order of their lay-off, provided they are certified and qualified to fill the existing opening. It shall be the laid-off teacher's responsibility to maintain their current mailing address and/or forwarding address with the employer; eligibility for recall shall be based on the teacher's certificate on file at the time of recall notice. Notice of recall shall be sent by the employer, by certified mail, to the last known mailing address of the teacher. Within five (5) working days from the date of the receipt of the recall notice, exclusive of days when no mail deliveries are made, the teacher must provide written notification to the Superintendent of his/her acceptance or rejection of the recall. The teacher bears the burden of supplying the employer with the information contained in this section in order to be eligible for recall.
- J. In the event that a teacher is laid-off, said teacher will be placed on the substitute list and will be given first priority for substitute positions. In the event that more than one teacher is laid-off, priority will be given to the most senior teacher within the areas of their certification and qualifications.
- K. Effective date of employment or re-employment, after a break in employment, shall be the first day of work.

Section 4: Seniority

Seniority, for the purposes of this Agreement, shall be defined as the length of unbroken service within the bargaining unit from the date of the employee's first day of employment in a bargaining unit position. All bargaining unit seniority is lost when employment is severed by resignation, retirement, failure to return from a leave of absence, failure to return from recall, abandonment, or discharge. Neither lay-off nor the taking of an approved leave, as provided under this Agreement, shall constitute a break in service. A seniority list consistent with this Agreement, shall be prepared by the employer within thirty (30) days of the ratification of this Agreement. The seniority list shall be in rank order of the date of the bargaining unit member's first day of work as a bargaining unit member. In the event more than one individual has the same first day of work as a bargaining unit member, the relative place of such persons on the seniority list, with respect to that date of work, will be determined by a drawing. The date, place and time of the drawing will be provided, in writing, to the Union and all affected members one (1) week before the drawing. The drawing will be conducted openly and at a time and place that reasonably allows all interested bargaining unit members, and particularly those affected, to attend. The President of the Union, or his/her designee shall draw for any person unable to be in attendance. All affected bargaining unit members will be notified, in writing, of the results of the drawing within forty-eight (48) hours of the drawing.

The seniority list shall be published (with notation of the certification/approvals then on file with the Employer of each bargaining unit member) and posted conspicuously in the area of each building reserved for bargaining unit members use by October 15th of each school year. Updates of the list shall be published and posted once a year.

A copy of the posted seniority list and all subsequent updates shall be provided to the Union. Errors, omissions and/or deletions in or to the list as posted, will be noted and made as required to conform to this Agreement at the request of the Union and notice provided to affected members. All challenges to a seniority list must be made within ten (10) days of the posting of the list. If the challenge results in any corrections, the corrections shall be posted and subject to another ten (10) day challenge period. The District shall incur no liability for relying upon the accuracy of the seniority list.

For seniority and salary schedule placement purposes, regular teachers or teachers on lay-off status who are substitute teaching with an assignment to one specific teaching position serving forty-five (45) or more working days, or one (1) marking period during a semester, will be given credit for one semester.

Bargaining unit personnel working less than full-time will receive salary schedule and seniority credit as follows:

1. Teachers working half-time or less will receive one-quarter (1/4) year credit for each semester worked.

2. Teachers working more than half-time will receive full credit for each semester worked.

Section 5: Administrator Seniority

Bargaining unit members who become Administrators in the Almont system will have their bargaining unit seniority frozen. If they return to the bargaining unit following unbroken service to the Almont Schools, they will be credited with their frozen seniority.

ARTICLE IX Teacher Evaluation

Section 1: Probationary Teacher

Step A: Schedule of Evaluation

Probationary teachers will be evaluated formally by the Administration a minimum of two (2) times in each of their probationary years. These two (2) evaluations are to be completed prior to the end of March each year. Evaluations will be reasonably spaced and completion of one evaluation will be at least one (1) month following the completion of the prior evaluation. Any extension of this time limit will be mutually agreeable, in writing, to the affected teacher, Association and Administrator.

Step B: Contents of Evaluation

The total evaluation shall be work-related in its criteria and shall include, but not be limited to, consideration of the affected teacher's general record, attitude, and activities as they influence his performance in school, as well as teaching skills. The elements which comprise the assessment are to embrace the teacher's attendance and promptness record, cooperation in complying with directives, dependability in meeting deadlines and in being continuously prepared, ability to cope with problems and to work with other human beings, interest in children, participation in activities relating to the job of teaching skills, capacity to inspire desire for learning in children, as well as proficiency to measure the role of the teacher. The evaluation process is intended to identify and correct problems to improve an already satisfactory performance. To that end, Evaluation (and Observation Reports that are part thereof) Reports where a teacher's rating is satisfactory and where problems or areas for improvement are identified, worked on, and corrected, will be removed following one (1) year. Said reports will be removed immediately after the final evaluation of the school year following the date of the Observation and/or Evaluation Report. If no Evaluation Report is filed during said school year, the reports will be removed at the end of the school year. Problems observed outside the formal observation process are to be brought to the teacher's attention as soon as practical following the event in order to correct the problems as soon as possible. A teacher should be expected to measure up to the professional standards of the vocation and shall

be rated accordingly. The Evaluation Form used shall be mutually acceptable and developed by both the Board and Association.

Step C: Observation for Evaluation

The Administrator shall review personnel files to determine the teacher's record of absence and tardiness, as well as evidence of strength and weaknesses which might be revealed by entries related to outstanding performance and commendations, as well as records of warnings, reprimands, discipline, or special instructions which may have been issued to the teacher.

The Administrator shall also conduct a classroom observation of the teacher in action with pupils prior to each of the two (2) formal evaluation conferences and shall rely upon his own knowledge of the teacher's performance and level of professional relationships. Each of the two (2) minimum observations will be at least thirty (30) minutes in duration. All observations or monitoring of the work performance of a teacher shall be conducted openly and with the knowledge of the teacher.

The Administrator shall meet with the teacher prior to the initial observation. The requirements of the observation session shall be explained in detail. This will include a review of the Evaluation Form.

Step D: Observation Conference

The evaluator shall provide an observation report to the teacher within five (5) school days of the observation or, if a series of observations are no more than five (5) school days apart, then the observation report shall be furnished to the teacher within five (5) days of the last observation of the series. The five (5) day period will be mutually extended in the event either party is unavailable.

The Observation Report will be explained to the teacher, in detail, setting forth the teacher's strong points and weaknesses. Counseling is to be utilized by the Administrator so that the teacher may receive guidance as to how to best strengthen weaknesses and improve on an already satisfactory performance.

The evaluation conference and forms will be in lieu of the observation conference in cases when the Administration determines that only one (1) observation per evaluation is required. In cases where the teacher's performance requires more than one (1) observation period evaluation, the evaluation conference will be conducted within five (5) school days of the final observation conference. An Association Representative may be present at any of the conferences if required by the teacher.

Step E: Evaluation Conferences

Following the observation(s), the Administrator shall meet with the teacher within one (1) week after the (final) observation is completed. The rating of the evaluation is to be

explained to the teacher, in detail, setting forth the teacher's strong points and weaknesses. Counseling is to be utilized by the Administrator so that the teacher may receive guidance as to how to best strengthen weaknesses and improve on an already satisfactory performance. The Administrator conducting the evaluation shall enter on the Evaluation Form as to the affected teacher's weaknesses, together with recommendations as to how these deficiencies may be overcome. When past weaknesses are absent from succeeding evaluations, it is understood that those weaknesses were corrected. The teacher is to sign the form for the purpose of acknowledging that the interview took place and that discussion was held, but this shall not constitute any admission by the teacher of agreement of the assessment set forth.

An Association Representative may be present at any of the conferences if requested by the teacher.

Section 2: Tenure Teachers

<u>Step A:</u> In connection with evaluation of tenure teachers, the Board agrees to observe and evaluate these employees when necessary in the opinion of the District. The Evaluation Form and procedure used shall be mutually acceptable and developed by both the Board and Association.

Step B: When performance evaluation of a tenure teacher suggests that the teacher employed is not meeting minimal, acceptable standards of performance, the Administration will recommend a program for improvement. The teacher will be observed and evaluated as often as necessary to review the teacher's progress and compliance with the program of assistance.

<u>Step C:</u> With the exceptions specified in Step A of this Section, the evaluation of tenure teachers will follow the terms and conditions specified in Section 1.

ARTICLE X Disciplinary Procedures

Section 1:

No teacher will be disciplined, reprimanded, or dismissed without Just Cause and procedural due process. The Board agrees to follow a policy of progressive correction which minimally includes oral reprimands, written reprimands, suspension(s) with and without pay; with discharge as a final and last resort. When appropriate, a program of improvement will be provided for the affected teacher. Discipline, other than discharge, demotion, or retirement will be automatically and unreservedly subject to the grievance procedure of this Agreement, including arbitration.

Section 2:

The Board agrees that its rules of conduct will be reasonable and that its enforcement will be fair.

Section 3:

Disciplinary interviews and reprimands will be conducted in private. An affected teacher will, however, have the right, in all instances, to request the presence of an Association Representative or designee at said interview and when such a request is made the interview will not proceed until the Representative is in attendance.

Section 4:

Teachers and the Association shall be given copies of all entries in their files which might be used as reliance for action against them and shall acknowledge receipt of same by their signature on the original document. In the event any teacher refuses to sign acknowledgment of receipt, the copies shall, instead, be furnished to the Association for transmittal and the Association guarantees to make acknowledgment that the Board has furnished the copy. Copies of past entries, prior to the date of this Agreement, will be supplied upon request from a teacher.

Section 5:

The Board agrees to purge from personnel files, formal disciplinary actions relating to minor misconduct, two (2) years after the last incident. All activities relating to physical abuse will remain in the file.

ARTICLE XI Compensation

Section 1:

The salaries of teachers covered by this Agreement shall be as set forth in Schedule A, which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement.

Section 2:

The per diem teacher's pay on which deductions and adjustments will be calculated, shall be based on the teacher's annual salary, divided by the days covered in the calendar, including paid holidays. Paid holidays shall be: Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas, New Year's Day, Good Friday (one-half day), and Memorial Day (192.5 days).

Section 3:

Supplementary pay for specific, selected activities out of the normal contract, and extracurricular activities shall be as set forth in Schedule B, which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. The Board will not capriciously deprive a teacher of continuing in a particular extra-duty for which he is qualified. Payment for assignments under Schedule B will be in accordance with the following schedule:

- 1. All staff members may have their base pay plus one additional line item.
- 2. Those staff members being utilized in three (3) or more line items will have the option of selecting the two they wish to appear on their payroll. The other will be handled in the following manner:
 - a.) At the conclusion of the activity.
 - b.) For those going year round, at the conclusion of the first semester and second semester.
- 3. All substitute teaching will be paid in a separate check once a month.

Section 4:

The Association realizes that from time to time one teacher may be requested to cover for another. In such cases, the teacher shall receive Twenty-Five (\$25.00) Dollars for a normal preparation period.

ARTICLE XII Calendar, Schedules, and Hours

Section 1: School Calendar

The Board recognizes its obligation to bargain with the Association over the annual school calendar and the Association recognizes the necessity for a calendar to be established for the school year. In fulfillment of these objectives, the parties agree to make the subject of the school calendar a matter for negotiations. It is understood that the start date of the school year is not a mandatory subject for bargaining, and can be set by the Board of Education.

Any modification of the negotiated calendar shall be made only after the representatives of both groups consult and mutually agree to the proposed modification of said school calendar.

Section 2: Class Schedules

Assignment of individual teachers to particular class schedules within the adopted general schedule of teaching hours will be made by the involved Principal.

Section 3:

The normal objectives shall be to inform all teachers, in writing, before the end of the school year as to their teaching schedules for the following year. To the extent that such lead time, in giving notice, be met, or if initial allotments have to be changed, every effort shall be made to publish a master schedule as soon as possible thereafter. Adjustment in this master schedule shall normally be completed by August 15th. Changes in assignments after that date shall be held to the minimum necessary for effecting schedules so as to meet the requirement of servicing pupil need. Further, schedule adjustments may be made at the commencement of the second semester in order to accommodate problems arising from over and under enrollments in certain classes.

Section 4:

A. The parties recognize that control of class size is an important factor for the highest quality of education. To this end, the Board agrees to strive to meet the following goals in keeping with its resources, balanced by its incurred obligations, and the feasibility of increasing the staff without curtailing programs and activities deemed sound and necessary by the Board.

Elementary	<u>Optimums</u>	Secondary	<u>Optimums</u>
Kdg 1st	22	7th - 8th	26
2nd	24	*9th - 12th	*Standards of professional
3rd - 6th	24		Associations for each course

To plan ahead properly to meet the above goals, many factors are involved. Should either the Association or Administration request, a committee comprised of Administration and Association members will meet to discuss class sizes - specifically to make projections and recommendations.

- B. When elementary classes exceed 30 students per class, per grade, the Administration will add a new section no later than the beginning of the following semester. The count date for purposes of this section shall be the first Friday in December during each school year.
- C. Students mainstreamed into a regular education classroom for at least two subjects will be counted toward the class count.
- D. In the secondary area, the Board agrees to abide by the regulations of the

North Central Accreditation Association in regard to classroom size. In the event teachers are assigned to teach six (6) classes, 165 students per day will serve as a maximum standard for general classrooms. In the event teachers are assigned to teach five (5) classes, 150 students per day will serve as a maximum standard for general classrooms. Lab stations will serve as the limiting criteria for industrial arts, technology labs, and lab sciences. Activity classes will maintain a class load indicated by reasonable past practice. Student enrollment in Language Arts classes in which student writing is frequently required will be limited to no more than thirty-three (33) students, unless the involved teacher agrees to add additional students.

In the event teachers are assigned to teach four (4) classes, 120 students per day will serve as the maximum standard for general classrooms.

Section 5:

2008/2009 Primary School Schedule:

8:30 a.m.	Beginning of Teachers' Day
8:41 a.m.	Classes begin
11:50 a.m.	A.M. Kindergarten Dismissal
12:45 p.m.	P.M. Kindergarten Begins
3:53 p.m.	Students Dismissed
4:00 p.m.	End of Teachers' Day

2008/2009 Elementary School Schedule:

8:15 a.m.	Beginning of Teachers' Day
8:25 a.m.	Classes Begin
3:37 p.m.	Students Dismissed
3:45 p.m.	End of Teachers' Day

2008/2009 Middle School Schedule:

6th Grade

7:25 Teachers report
7:40—8:35 1st hour
8:40—9:35 2nd hour
9:40—10:50 3rd hour
10:55—11:25 SECOND LUNCH
11:30—12:20 4th hour
12:25—1:10 5th hour
1:15—2:00 6th hour
2:05—2:35 Advisory
2:50 Teacher s dismissed

7th Grade

7:25 Teachers report

7:40—8:35 1st hour

8:40—9:35 2nd hour

9:40-10:30 3rd hour

10:35-11:05 FIRST LUNCH

11:10—12:05 4th hour

12:10—1:10 5th hour

1:15—2:00 6th hour

2:05-2:35 Advisory

2:50 Teacher's dismissed

8th Grade

7:25 Teachers report

7:40—8:35 1st hour

8:40—9:35 2nd hour

9:40—10:30 3rd hour

10:35—11:25 4th hour

11:30—12:00 THIRD LUNCH

12:05—1:10 5th hour

1:15—2:00 6th hour

2:05-2:35 Advisory

2:50 Teacher's dismissed

2008/2009 High School Schedule:

7:15	Teachers Report
7:30 - 8:42	First Period
8:47 - 9:59	Second Period
10:04 - 11:51	Third Period
11:56 - 1:08	Fourth Period
1:13 - 2:25	Fifth Period
2:40	End of Teachers' Day

- A.) Teachers will be assigned weekly conference time of at least 250 minutes. The contact time with students for an elementary teacher will not exceed 1,675 minutes weekly.
- B.) Special classes at the primary and elementary level will be considered conference time. No more than two (2) regular specials classes will be assigned to one teacher in any given day.
- C.) Any time not designated as "duty-free" will be assigned by the involved building principal.
- D.) Elementary teachers will be available to cover special classes during emergencies. The administration will endeavor to give as much advance notice as possible when such an emergency occurs. When teachers substitute

for another teacher during their conference period, they will receive a \$20 stipend. In the event a teacher misses an assigned conference period due to a specials teacher being assigned to substitute teach, or in the event a teacher misses an assigned conference period due to the unavailability of a substitute teacher for a specials teacher, said teacher will receive a \$20 stipend.

- E.) Teachers will have a minimum of thirty (30) minutes designed as duty-free lunch to include five minutes passing time to and from the aforementioned lunch.
- F.) The schedules of the Counselor and Media Specialist may be altered to accommodate student need, but shall not exceed the total amount of daily time assigned to classroom teachers. The Counselor and Media Specialist will be assigned a duty-free lunch period of thirty (30) minutes, but are not subject to the assignment of conference time. In the event the Media Specialist is assigned to teach classes in the library, s/he will be provided the appropriate conference time.
- G.) Building faculty meetings may be held provided the frequency rate does not exceed two (2) per month, and each will not exceed forty-five (45) minutes in length. Should a teacher volunteer to serve on a building committee, they will not be expected to attend more than two meetings of said committee in any month. Committee work for which the teacher receives compensation (ex. FRAMEWORKS curriculum studies) shall not apply to the above limits. The superintendent shall call pre-school or post-school day faculty meetings provided the total amount of time required for staff members outside of their scheduled work day does not exceed five (5) hours per school year.
- H.) The Association recognizes the safety and care of children is a prime responsibility of the school district and that the welfare of the children dictates that with any schedule, inclement weather, absence of personnel, or other emergencies, situations may arise when it will be necessary for teachers to accept responsibility for supervision of children even though such instances might cause temporary interruption in the application of lunch schedules, special classes, etc. However, it is agreed that, in the event a substitute teacher is unavailable, the absent teacher's students will not be divided up among the rest of the teachers in that particular grade.
- I.) The Association further recognizes that in the interest of safety, teachers may be assigned to supervise students in the hallway, walk students to such areas as the buses, recess, the lunchroom, etc. It is understood that these assignments are not intended to be on a regular basis, but may occur due to unforeseen circumstances.
- J.) It is the intent of both parties that the teaching staff at the High School will teach five (5) periods. In the event of an unforeseen occurrence which would cause a six (6) period teaching day, it is understood that the teacher

will be limited to a maximum of 305 contact minutes daily with students. Middle school teachers may teach six (6) periods, and will be limited to 305 minutes of student instruction.

Section 6:

A teacher-seeking relief from all or part of the assigned primary or extra schedule on any day shall explain the reason for the requested time off to the Principal so that the time off may be granted or denied.

Section 7:

Teachers are expected and encouraged to participate in the activities outlined in Schedule C.

Section 8:

When teachers are absent for a half (1/2) day or more, substitutes will be provided in all cases when available.

Section 9:

When teachers must be absent for other than school business for less than a half-day (1/2) each occurrence, fellow teachers may cover for them. The use of conference periods to cover is highly suggested. (No remuneration is expected.)

Section 10:

Administrators may fill in on emergency cases of short notice when teachers are absent.

Section 11:

When school business dictates a teacher be absent from assigned classes, Administration will be responsible for organizing the covering of the teacher's classes. This coverage will be on a voluntary basis and in line with Article XI, Section 4.

Section 12:

Paraprofessionals will be hired to handle recess and noon duty in Grades K-6.

Section 13:

An Educational Planning and Placement Committee commenced by the Superintendent and composed of at least one (1) administrator, one (1) counselor, and one (1) teacher shall evaluate and implement a program according to Federal and State Laws and Intermediate School District guidelines for mainstreamed students.

Section 14:

Any teacher involved in the "Mainstreamed" Program may participate in any case conference relative to their student's program. Teachers shall be released during case conferences held during the school day. Such release shall not infringe upon regular preparation time. Teachers shall be compensated at their regular hourly rate for participation in case conferences held outside the regular school day.

Section 15:

In order to achieve a quality "Mainstreaming" Program, the I.E.P.C. shall recommend, if necessary, training to all involved non-special education teachers.

Section 16:

Specials teachers assigned to travel from one building to another as part of their regular teaching day will be reimbursed mileage at the authorized District rate.

Section 17:

The amount of time scheduled for the November parent/teacher conferences will be the same at all school buildings, and will not exceed a total of eight and one-half hours (8 1/2) hours, unless altered by a mutual agreement of the Board and Association.

Section 18:

In order to met the five (5) day professional development requirement outlined in the School Code, three (3) professional development days shall be scheduled as part of the District calendar. Two professional development days shall be scheduled by the teacher, with the approval of their building principal. A record of each teacher's professional development attendance will be maintained on District forms.

Section 19:

In the event additional student and/or teacher days are required than are provided in the District's calendar, the District will immediately adjust the calendar to meet the new requirement without compensation to the employee. The daily schedule will be adjusted to reflect the daily instructional minutes in place during the 2005/06 school year.

DISTRICT CALENDAR 2008-2009 School Year

August	27	Teacher Work Day (no students)
	28	Teacher In-Service (no students)

September	2	First Day for Students (early release)
October	15	High School Conferences (school in session)
	16	High School Conferences (early release for HS only)
	17	Teacher In-Service for OP/AE/MS (no students for all bldgs.)
November	7	First Marking Period Ends for OP/AE/MS (school in session)
	12	Parent-Teacher Conferences at OP/AE/MS (school in session)
	13	Parent-Teacher Conferences at OP/AE/MS (early release for OP/AE/MS only)
	14	No School for all buildingsHS Teacher In-Service
	26	End of First TrimesterHS Exams (early release for all students)
	27-28	No School (Thanksgiving Break)
December	22-31	Winter Break
January	1-2	Winter Break
	5	Return to School
	23	Semester ends at OP/AE/MS (school in session for all students)
February	13	No School for Students (County Wide In-Service Date)
	16	No School (Presidents' Day)
March	5	End of Second Trimester at HSHS Exams (early release for all students)
	6	Teacher Work Day (no students)
	27	Third Marking Period Ends for OP/AE/MS (school in session for all)
April	3	Early Dismissal
	6-13	Spring Break
	14	Return to School
May	25	No School (Memorial Day)
June	9	Early Release for HS students only
	10	Last Day for Students (early release)
	11	Teacher Work Day

Please note: The school year may be extended in the event of school cancellations if the state-required minimum hours of student instruction has not been met.

ARTICLE XIII Paid for Leave Time

Section 1:

Sick leave, with pay, shall be granted for bona-fide personal illness or quarantine, serious illness in the immediate family, or death of a near relative up to a total amount of ten (10) days in each teaching year, with the unused portion accumulating to the particular teaching credit, to a total of sixty (60) days. The following limitations shall apply:

- 1. Personal illness or injury: (See Article XIX)
- 2. Serious illness in immediate family: three (3) days, unless extra time is approved, in writing, by the Superintendent of Schools for pressing and inescapable need.
- 3. The employee must notify the Administration or his/her designee one hour before the official start of school for that employee, barring emergencies.
- 4. Sick leave cannot be tied to an unpaid child care leave, as outlined in Article XVI, Section 4.

Section 2:

The Superintendent shall have authority on the basis of his sole determination to grant the request of an affected teacher for absence in connection with participation in recognized religious observances or for allocation of time off for other legitimate compelling purposes of appropriate, necessary days from the unused portion of that teacher's accumulated sick leave, provided that:

- a. The request is submitted, in writing, sufficiently in advance for proper consideration to be given, except when unforeseen emergency obviates the possibility.
- b. The reasons, therefore, are certifiable and for unavoidable pressing personal need, and
- c. A substitute has been obtained as a replacement.

Section 3:

In addition to the accumulated sick leave, a maximum of three (3) non-accumulative days off with pay, shall be granted each year, and when possible, scheduled in advance.

No more than six (6%) per cent of the teaching staff shall be allowed to be absent for personal business on any one work day unless mitigating circumstances occur. Unused

Personal Days at the end of each school year are nonaccumulative as personal days. However, such unused personal days shall be converted into the employee's accumulated sick leave at the end of the year.

Section 4: Professional Business Days

A teacher desiring a Professional Business Day for the purpose of attending conferences, workshops, or seminars, or for visitation for viewing specific instructional techniques or programs, shall consult with his Principal stating his wishes or reasons one week in advance of the conference or desired visitation, except when the teacher had no way of knowing about the event one week in advance. The written request shall be submitted to the Superintendent of Schools. The approval of this request must take into account the value to the School District, the availability of a substitute teacher and the total budget. Such attendance will not be charged against either sick leave or Personal Business Days.

In order to provide a just and equitable process, the Administration will send a representative portion of the involved department, coaching staff or grades, and they in turn will introduce the new ideals, philosophies, techniques or other materials to the remainder of the affected staff members.

Section 5: Jury Duty

A teacher selected for Jury Duty shall be required to notify the Superintendent of Schools of the fact immediately upon receipt of the first notice of selection. The teacher and Superintendent shall each petition the court to schedule the assignment during the summer vacation in order to minimize the disruption of classroom teaching. Any teacher who fulfills these directives and is still assigned Jury Duty by the court shall report for school duty whenever the schedule of Jury Duty permits on a given day and shall be paid the difference between the jury pay said teacher receives and the teacher's per diem for the school days of such duty. It is the responsibility of the teacher to collect his jury pay and to show proof of the amount received in order to receive any payment from the School District for these days.

Section 6: Subpoenaed as a Witness in Court

A teacher subpoenaed to serve as a witness in court shall be paid the difference between his witness fees, exclusive of travel allowance and the teacher's per diem. It is the responsibility of the teacher to collect his witness fees and to show proof of the amount received to the school Administration in order to receive any payment from the School District for these days.

Section 7: Other Absences

All absences other than those expressly covered above shall result in the deduction from the involved teacher's salary of the established per diem pay of said teacher for each school day of such non-covered absences, regardless of the reasons for the absence and not withstanding whether the specific absence might be excused or unexcused.

Section 8: Death in the Immediate Family or of a Near-Relative

Days with pay shall be granted to the employee in the event of a death in the immediate family or of a near-relative:

- -Three days, if 200 or less miles one-way travel is involved.
- -Five days, if more than 200 miles one-way travel is involved.

Section 9: Record of Sick Days

The Administration shall inform each teacher, as soon as practical after the commencement of each school year, as to the number of sick days credited to his own bank

Section 10: Definition of Terms

The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation of Section 1:

- a. Immediate Family Mother, Father, Wife, Brother, Sister, Husband, Child
- b. Near Relative Mother-in-Law, Father-in-Law, Sister-in-Law, Brother-in-Law, Uncle, Aunt, Grandfather, Grandmother, Grandchild

Section 11:

Employees with perfect attendance for the year shall receive a Two Hundred Fifty (\$250.00) Dollar stipend. Perfect attendance will be defined as the employee using no personal or sick days during the school year.

ARTICLE XIV Teacher's Authority

Section 1:

Pupil discipline is based on the requirement that all children must adhere to a normally-to-be expected code of acceptable behavior, conform with all school rules and regulations, and comply willingly with all orders incident to school routine from all adult school employees.

Section 2:

The Board recognizes its responsibility to give all reasonable support and assistance to teachers with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline in the classroom.

Section 3:

The Association recognizes the teacher's responsibility to maintain order and control in the classroom through effective teaching and leadership techniques and, in cases of minor infractions through imposition of customary classroom discipline.

Section 4:

A teacher may exclude a pupil from the class and send him to the office when the grossness of the offense, the persistence of the misbehavior, or the disruptive effect of the violation makes the continued presence of the pupil in the classroom intolerable. In such cases the teacher shall furnish the Principal, as promptly as his teaching obligations will allow, with full particulars on the problem or incident. The affected pupil will be readmitted to the classroom only upon written authorization of the Principal.

Section 5:

Individual records will be maintained on serious student disciplinary problems in the Principal's Office and will be available to teachers, when necessary, as an aid for determining disciplinary recommendations concerning particular pupils.

Section 6:

School authorities will endeavor to achieve correction of student misbehavior through counseling, interviews, and conferences which, when warranted, shall be extended to include the child's parents. Suspension may be imposed for serious or persistent infractions of normal good behavior in accordance with Board policy.

Section 7:

Any case of assault upon a teacher shall be promptly reported to the Board or its designated representative. The Board will provide advice to the teacher as to his rights and obligations with respect to such assault and shall render legal assistance to the teacher in connection with handling the incident by law enforcement and judicial authorities.

ARTICLE XV Association/Board Cooperation

Section 1:

The parties hereto pledge their sincere joint and individual efforts to attain the objective of mutual cooperation on matters of common interest. Among these are: enhancing the dignity and effectiveness of the teaching profession, protecting and advancing the interest of the pupils and efficiently managing and conserving the School District's property and resources. To this end, the Board invites, and the Association encourages, teachers to actively participate as members of school advisory committees so that composite thinking may be reflected in recommendations on matters relating to pupil-teacher ratio, curriculum, courses of study, choice of textbooks, in-service training, teacher evaluation, new and improved teaching methods and techniques, selection of education equipment and supplies, use of teacher aids and other means of relieving teachers of clerical and related tasks, school calendar, class schedules, schedules of other assignments, grouping of pupils and other professional problems.

Section 2: Supplies, Equipment, Maintenance

The Board recognizes that appropriate texts, library reference facilities, maps and globes, laboratory equipment, audio-visual equipment, art supplies, athletic equipment, current periodicals, standard tests and questionnaires and similar materials are the tools of the teaching profession. The parties will confer from time to time for the purpose of improving the selection and use of such educational tools and the Board undertakes, as promptly as feasible, to implement all joint decisions thereon made by its representatives and the Association. The Board agrees to keep the schools equipped and maintained as feasible.

Section 3:

Further, the parties, through meetings of their representatives, agree to discuss problems on the agenda affecting either side which may arise, but not be subjects for the grievance procedure or collective bargaining. In such monthly meetings, the Committee shall strive to find ways for mutual accommodation which are acceptable and do not alter or abridge the Agreement.

Section 4:

The Board declares its support of a policy of filling vacancies from within its own staff when deemed to be in the best interest of students. Whenever a vacancy occurs or is anticipated, the Administration shall post notice of the vacancy on the teacher bulletin board in each building for not less than two (2) weeks. In no event shall a person from outside the District be hired for a classroom position where there is a qualified applicant

from within the system, unless the outside candidate possesses qualifications that are considered superior to the staff applicant.

If the posted qualifications are changed, the position shall be reposted.

Whenever vacancies occur during the summer months, every teacher will be notified by mail. The teacher shall have the responsibility of contacting the appropriate Board designee and indicate his/her interest in a position within three (3) days of receiving the notification.

ARTICLE XVI Leaves of Absence

Section 1: Definition - Leaves of Absence

For the purpose of this Article, a Leave of Absence is any absence, either paid or unpaid, for any approved reason. Any unapproved absence shall be deemed and treated as a breach of discipline.

Section 2: Mandatory Notice

The individual teacher shall be responsible to inform the school Administration as soon as the affected teacher has knowledge of impending need to take time off from work for any reason whatsoever. In those cases where the cause for the absence arises on an emergency basis so that the involved teacher cannot supply advance notice, then the information is to be furnished to the Administration at the earliest moment after the teacher becomes aware of the necessity to be absent.

Violations of this notice requirement will invalidate any claim for a compensable day off and shall cause such lost time, not covered by notice, to be deemed "unexcused". Absences for three (3) days without giving notice shall be considered and treated as a "voluntary quit without proper notice" except in cases where it is physically impossible for the teacher to give notice or cause such notice to be given.

Section 3: Requirements for Approved Leaves

The notice from the teacher to the school Administration shall, in every case, without exception, include the furnishing of the reasons for the absence. Determination as to whether or not the required leave will be granted will be made by the Administration as follows:

- a. Personal Leave with Pay (as specified in Article XIII)
 - 1. The reason must be professionally ethical.
- b. Personal Leave without Pay (other than Child-Care Leave)

- 1. The reasons given must be verifiable and legitimate.
- 2. The need for the absence must be compulsive and inescapable.
- 3. The teacher's attendance record must be within bound of less than excessive absences when the requested leave is for a reason other than illness or injury.
- 4. A substitute teacher must be available when the requested absence is short-term and for reasons other than illness or injury, or a contract teacher must be on hand when the requested absence is to be for extended duration.
- 5. The Administration shall have the unabridged right to reject any request for such leave other than for illness or injury; if, in its sole judgment, it deems the effect to be contrary to the best interests of the school system and its teaching objectives.

Section 4: Child-Care Leave

A leave of absence shall be granted to any teacher for the remainder of the school year for the purpose of child care. The object child of the leave could be: 1) Prenatal; 2) Newborn infant; 3) Newly adopted child; or 4) a child suffering from crippling, terminal, or serious accident or illness. Said leave shall commence upon request of the teacher. It is further provided that:

- a. The leave may be extended an additional year by written request of the teacher and Board approval. Such request may be made specifically by the teacher at the time of requested leave. Such leave shall be subjected to the terms of Section 6 of this Article.
- b. A pregnant teacher may commence said leave at her option any time after confirmation of pregnancy by her doctor.
- c. In the event of miscarriage or death of the object child, the leave of absence may be terminated upon request of the teacher and verification by a physician. The return from such leave, under these conditions, shall be at the beginning of the next semester.
- d. For seniority or salary schedule purposes, the teacher shall be given credit for a full semester if she teaches sixty (60) or more days during the semester during which said leave was granted.
- e. Granting of such leave will in no way interrupt seniority and rights attendant to.

In lieu of the above provisions for unpaid child-care leave, a pregnant teacher shall have the right, if she so desires, to receive sick leave benefits beginning at such time as she is no longer able to fulfill the duties and responsibilities of her position. It is expressly understood that the teacher shall not be entitled to both the unpaid child care and sick leave provisions if she chooses to receive sick leave benefits pursuant to the provisions of Article XIII, Section 1. In the case of leave for child care, the Board agrees to continue the teacher's health insurance coverage for a period of six (6) months from the date of commencement of leave either paid or unpaid. Following expiration of Board coverage, teacher may carry her health insurance on the group plan so long as she is eligible.

Section 5: Duration of Leaves

All notices of absences for any reason shall also incorporate advice to the Administration as to when the time off is to commence and when it is to terminate. Cases where definite dates as to the beginning and/or end of a requested absence cannot be predetermined shall be handled as follows:

- a. Other Leaves The affected teacher shall be responsible to apprise the Administration as to the commencement date of the desired leave in all cases other than child care when the notice is given, except in the instance where a teacher is scheduled to enter a hospital but the precise date of bed availability has not been determined, or other self-evident and uncontrollable cause. In these latter cases, the Administration must be notified as to the exact date as soon as the teacher gains such knowledge.
- b. <u>Termination of Leave</u> No leave shall be for a period beyond the span approved by the Administration in accordance with the following rules:
 - 1. No leave shall be for longer than one (1) year unless extended by consent and approved by the Board of Education.
 - Requests for extension on any leave shall have to be made before March 1st. The leave, which has already been granted, shall be submitted, in writing, to the Superintendent of Schools; in case of mid-year leave, the notification must be by October 1st.
 - 3. Each teacher shall have to return from leave on the designated day (unless extended by the Superintendent of Schools in writing). Any teacher failing to report after expiration of leave shall be considered and treated as a "voluntary quit without proper notice".
 - 4. Every notice to the Administration about an impending absence MUST indicate the exact date of the termination of the absence when the teacher shall reassume duty, except under the following

circumstances:

- a. A reported absence for a given day without date of return being indicated shall be deemed to embrace a one-day of absence, with the teacher obligated to be at work on the following day.
- b. A reported absence for a given day without date of return cannot be precisely given, but which is estimated to be of less than six (6) weeks when the notice is given, shall terminate upon the date, furnished later (but as soon as possible) by the teacher, set by the attending physician in cases of illness or injury, or in other cases, as approved by the Administration.
- c. Extended absence of more than six (6) weeks, granted for any reason, including illness, injury, or child-care leave, shall terminate on that date designated by the Administration nearest to the date of availability of the teacher for return, which shall be furnished to the Administration with the notice; or if such date cannot then be determined, as soon as it becomes known to the teacher. The date set by the Administration for termination of the leave shall be that date which, in the Administration's judgment, avoids learning disruption and preserves learning continuity for the pupils.
- d. Return from extended absence due to illness or injury shall be dependent upon certification by the attending physician of the capability to perform the normal duties of the teacher.

Section 6:

- A. Secondary teachers returning from a one year leave of absence shall be restored to their original department from which said leave was taken. Said teacher will be returned to as much of his/her original schedule as possible.
- B. Lower elementary teachers, when returning, shall be placed in the lower elementary grades, upper elementary teachers, when returning, shall be placed in the upper elementary grades.
- C. Teachers receiving an extension of a leave of absence will be returned to the system when an opening for which they are certified and qualified becomes available.
- D. Should displacement of teachers take place, those returning from leaves shall have no more right of position than other teachers on the staff.

Section 7:

Whenever a leave of absence does not have a definite date of return within the same school year in which it commences, the affected teacher shall have to give notice to the Administration by March 1st of the expiring school year of intent and resolve to report for duty in the school system upon termination of the leave. Such notice of reaffirmed intent must be served on the Superintendent in timely fashion, in writing, or the then delinquent teacher shall be considered and treated as having signified intention to quit in compliance with the Michigan Teacher Tenure Law. In case of mid-year leave, notification must be by October 1st.

Section 8: Military Leave

Teachers inducted into, or volunteering for service in the armed forces of the United States of America shall be accorded all rights and treatment provided for them under appropriate State and Federal Law. In addition:

- a. If a tenure teacher's husband (or wife) is called into the military service and the tenure teacher moves to a family residence at the station assignment, after giving the Board notice of intention to move, said teacher shall remain until a replacement suitable to the Administration and the Board has been obtained, but not to exceed thirty (30) days, then said teacher's status shall be considered the same as though the teacher were under military jurisdiction.
- b. If a teacher requests and is granted a special leave of absence by the Board for the specific purpose of teaching in a United States military installation, outside credit for this experience shall be given upon return to the school system.

Section 9:

Upon proper return from a study or travel leave, teachers shall be credited on the salary schedule for the experience, and during such leave, all fringe benefits will be paid by the District, provided that the teacher returns to the School District for employment the following school year. Teachers not returning will reimburse the District for all costs incurred.

ARTICLE XVII Retirement, Resignation, and Physical Examinations

Section 1:

No teacher shall discontinue his services with the Board except by mutual consent, without giving a written notice to the Board at least sixty (60) days before September 1st

of the ensuing school year. The Board may agree to a resignation at any time after a replacement, suitable to the school Administration and the Board is obtained, provided that the circumstances underlying the resignation are valid in the opinion of the Board and warrant a search for replacement. Teachers are encouraged to notify the District of terminating their employment as soon as possible. Teachers working to the end of the school year will receive fringe benefits through the last pay period in the summer. Section 2:

In the event a physical examination is required by the Board of Education, the examination shall be made in accordance with the following terms and conditions:

- 1. The teacher may elect to be examined by a licensed physician of his own choosing, in which case the teacher shall bear the cost of the examination.
- 2. The teacher may elect to be examined by a licensed physician designated by the Board, in which case the Board shall bear the full cost of the examination.
- 3. In any case, the examination shall be to the full extent necessary for completion by the examining physician of physical examination forms supplied by the Board.
- 4. The completed forms and any necessary information setting forth the results of the examination are to be filed with the Superintendent promptly by the examining physician and must be received before the affected teacher will be permitted to commence teaching duties.

Section 3:

In the event that the report of an attending or examining physician of the teacher's choice is challenged by the Board after an illness, injury, or examination, then the following procedure shall be followed:

- 1. The Board may require the affected teacher to be examined by a physician of the Board's choice at the Board's expense.
- 2. If the reports of the two physicians are in disagreement or conflict, the respective bargaining committees shall meet and endeavor to reconcile the difference.
- 3. In the event mutual agreement cannot be reached to equitably and amicably dispose of the dispute, the controversy shall by-pass the grievance procedure, and instead the affected teacher shall be examined at the equally share cost of the Board and Association by appropriate specialists in the area of controversy at Ford Hospital, or if early

admittance cannot be arranged, the University of Michigan Hospital, Ann Arbor, Michigan, for final and binding determination upon the parties in the matter.

ARTICLE XVIII Early Retirement

Qualifications:

Reached 55 years of age or have at least twenty-five (25) years of service to the Almont School District.

The teacher must give the District, in writing, notice of intent to retire a minimum of thirty (30) days in advance.

Benefits:

- 1. The teacher will be issued an initial lump-sum payment of \$5,000 within thirty (30) days of the teacher's last day of work. Final payment of \$5,000 will be issued no later than one year from the date the first check was issued.
- 2. District retirees meeting the above qualification who are drawing benefits from the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement System (MPSERS) must sign up for the health insurance benefits provided by MSPERS. The District will reimburse the retiree's portion of the annual health care premium for a period of seven (7) years or until the age of 70 whichever comes first. Said employees completing the school year must sign up for hospitalization benefits commencing no later than September of the next school year. Persons receiving the hospitalization benefits in this Article prior to 2006 will continue to receive benefits pursuant to the Agreement in effect when they retired.

ARTICLE XIX Fringe Benefits

Section 1: Life Insurance

The Board of Education will purchase for each teacher, a \$100,000 Term Life Insurance Policy, plus an accidental death and dismemberment rider.

Section 2: Hospital Medical Insurance

A committee comprised of the superintendent, the AEA chief negotiator, the AEA president, and representatives of each district building will examine possible alternatives to items listed in this section.

A. The Board of Education will provide each full-time teacher hospital medical

insurance consisting of:

Blue Cross Certificates: Comprehensive Hospital Care Certificate

Semi-Private 0959.

Blue Cross Riders: DT-120, 0633, CC2286, OPC-2290, XF-0627

Blue Shield Certificates: MVF II Preferred Group Benefit

Certificates 1880, Prescription Drug Group Benefit Certificate - \$2.00

Co-Pay 0087

Blue Shield Riders: ML-1892, PTM-2 2006, FAE/RC-0218,

VST-4664, RPS-4832, EF-1991, PD-MAC-5013,

Reciprocity

Blue Cross and Blue Shield Master Medical Supplemental Benefit

<u>Certificates</u> Certificate, Option IV-4794

Blue Cross and Blue Shield COB-3-0540, DC-4656, SD-4651, Riders SAT-II-4081, MMC-PD-4786

B. Teachers electing not to receive hospital medical insurance will have the option of receiving a cash amount of Five Thousand (\$5,000) Dollars. The cash amount will be paid as wages in accordance with the District's payroll practices. The cash amount will increase in accordance with negotiated raises in Schedule A.

- C. Child-Care coverage for Blue Cross/Blue Shield is limited to six (6) months.
- D. Blue Cross/Blue Shield coverage shall be awarded to staff on leave due to injury or illness in accord with past practice.

Section 3:

If any teacher terminates employment during the course of the school year, the above benefits will cease at the end of the month.

Unless otherwise specified, above benefits do not apply to approved leaves of absence, except sick leaves and child-care leaves.

Section 4:

Teacher employees who drive their personal cars in the course of their employment or otherwise using their automobiles in service to the District, will be reimbursed upon prior approval and the presentation of an expense accounting, according to Board policy, an amount equal per mile to all other employees.

Section 5: Fringe Benefit Eligibility

Teachers must be employed at least one-half time to receive pro-rated benefits (50% of the premium cost) for which they are eligible. Teachers working more than half-time but less than full-time will receive pro-rated benefits for coverage in which they qualify (ex. a two-thirds time teacher would qualify for 67% of premium cost). The same formula will apply to part-time teachers who opt to forego the hospital medical insurance (ex. a two-thirds time teacher electing not to receive hospital medical insurance will receive 67% of the negotiated cash in lieu amount).

Employees working more than one-half time will receive full benefits for coverages in which they qualify.

Section 6:

The Board of Education will purchase, for each full-time teacher, long-term disability, subject to the following conditions:

Employee Eligibility: All full-time employees, under age 65, who are working at least thirty (30) hours per week and who are in an eligible class for the long-term disability insurance benefits.

<u>Waiting Period</u>: Benefits begin after the expiration of 90 calendar days.

Monthly Benefit: 66 2/3% of monthly contractual salary, exclusive of bonuses and overtime, will be payable up to a maximum benefit of \$4,000 per month.

Combined Maximum Limit: The total combined amount of benefits payable under this plan, and benefits payable as a result of disability or retirement provisions of governmental and employer sponsored plans, may not exceed 66 2/3% of an insured monthly contractual salary, exclusive of bonuses and overtime.

Maximum Benefit Period: Accident benefits are payable during continuous disability to age 65. Sick benefits are payable during continuous disability to age 65. Benefits are not payable for disability beyond the 65th birthday, except to provide at least one year of benefits

during a period of total disability commencing prior to age 65.

Pre-existing Condition Waiver Social Security Freeze Regular Occupation Waiver Cost of Living Mental/Nervous Waiver Alcoholism/Drug Addiction Waiver Pregnancy Complications Waiver Primary Social Security Offset Survivor Benefit

Section 7: Dental Insurance

The Board of Education will provide dental insurance in accordance with the specifications of MESSA, Delta Dental Plan E, with a benefit level of 80% Class I, 80% Class II, 80% to \$1,500 maximum Class III. Internal coordination of benefits will not apply.

Section 8: Vision Insurance

The Board of Education will provide vision insurance in accordance with the specifications of MESSA, Vision Care - VSP III Plan. Internal coordination of benefits will not apply.

Section 9: Longevity

After fifteen (15) years of continuous service, teachers shall receive 2% of BA Step 1; after twenty (20) years of continuous service, teachers shall receive 4% of BA Step 1; after thirty (30) years of continuous service, teachers shall receive 5% of BA Step 1, at the beginning of the year. Service to the District includes time as a teacher or administrator.

Section 10: Sick Day Reimbursement

Teachers in the Almont School District who accumulate sick days in excess of sixty (60) days at the conclusion of the school year will be reimbursed for those days over sixty (60) at the rate of \$40.00 per day.

Upon retirement from the District, the employee shall receive a \$30 stipend for each unused sick day.

Section 11: Employee Co-Payment for Insurance Package

The Board of Education will provide the following fringe benefits, life insurance, hospital medical insurance, long-term disability, dental insurance, vision insurance, to employees hired prior to the 2004/2005 school year according to past practice. For employees hired after the 2004/2005 school year, the Board of Education will provide the same fringe benefits (life insurance, hospital medical insurance, long-term disability, dental insurance, vision insurance, outlined above. However, the Board of Education's payment

for these fringe benefits will be limited to a 7% increase over the preceding year's cost to the Board, with any additional increase over this amount being paid by the employee.

Section 12:

The Association agrees that the employer shall have the right, upon mutual agreement with the Union, to implement beginning in June, prior to the expiration of the Agreement, either the benefits contained in Sections 1, 2, 6, 7, and 8, or the benefits contained below in Section 13:

Section 13: MESSA Plans

MESSA PLAN A - For Employees Needing Health Insurance

CHOICES II \$10/\$20 RX

LTD Benefit:

66 2/3% of Max Eligible Salary

Maximum Monthly Benefit: \$4,000

Qualifying Period:

90 Calendar Days

Elimination Period:

Modified Fill Elimination Period

COLA:

COLA no

Alcoholism/Drug:

Same as Illness

Mental/Nervous:

Same as Illness 5% Minimum Payment

Minimum Payout: **Pre-Existing Limits:**

Pre-existing limits waived

Social Security Offset:

Family Social Security Offset

Delta Dental--E 007 (80/80/80 - \$1,500)

Negotiated Life--\$100,000 AD&D

Vision--VSP-3

Prescription Coverage--\$10/20 Rx. The Board will reimburse up to the 2006/07 co-pay rate upon submittal of receipt.

MESSA PLAN B - For Employees Not Needing Health Insurance

Teachers electing not to receive hospital medical insurance will have the option of receiving a cash amount Five Thousand (\$5,000) Dollars. The cash amount will be paid as wages in accordance with the District's payroll practices. The cash amount will increase in accordance with negotiated raises in Schedule A. to the single subscriber rate of the District's health insurance plan. The cash amount will be paid as wages, in accordance with the District's payroll practices.

Long-Term Disability--66 2/3% - same as above

Delta Dental--E 007 (80/80/80 - \$1,500)

Negotiated Life--\$100,000 AD&D

Vision--VSP-3

The Board of Education will provide the fringe benefits outlined in the above MESSA PLAN A or MESSA PLAN B for employees hired prior to the 2004/2005 school year according to past practice. For employees hired after the 2004/2005 school year, the Board of Education will provide the same fringe benefits outlined in MESSA PLAN A or MESSA PLAN B. However, the Board of Education's payment for these fringe benefits will be limited to a 7% increase over the preceding year's cost to the Board, with any additional increase being paid by the employee.

Section 14: Section 125 Plan

The board agrees to establish a Section 125 Plan for employees who pay a portion of their insurance costs.

ARTICLE XX District Central Bank

Section 1:

The Association will operate a Sick Leave Bank. Participation is mandatory for all teachers. The Association will establish a committee to administer the Sick Leave Bank and to provide the information. The business office will keep the records.

Section 2:

Whenever the total number of days in the bank fall below 25 days, each teacher on staff will donate one day to the bank.

Section 3:

An individual teacher's unused sick days will accumulate to a maximum of sixty (60) days.

Section 4:

Prior to entry into the bank, a teacher must use his accumulated six days up to sixty (60) days and his current sick leave.

Section 5:

Any unused AEA days outlined in Article V (Association Rights), Sections 18 and 19, will be provided to the sick bank on an annual basis.

ARTICLE XXI Term of Agreement

Section 1:

The term of this Agreement shall be effective commencing July 1, 2008, and will continue through June 30, 2009.

Section 2: Successor Agreement

On or before April 1, 2009, either party to this Agreement may give notice by certified mail to the other party of its desire to terminate, amend, or modify this Agreement.

Section 3:

The parties mutually agree that the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement represent the full and complete understanding and commitment between the parties hereto which may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in an amendment hereto.

Section 4:

Each party, acknowledging that it had full opportunity to propose whatever terms and conditions it desired during the negotiation of this Agreement, hereby waives any and all additional demands against the other for obligatory negotiations designed to alter, change, add to, delete from, or modify the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board has caused this instrument to be signed in its name by its accredited representatives and the Association has caused the same to be signed in its name by its accredited representatives.

ALMONT BOARD OF EDUCATION

ALMONT EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Nancy Boxey, President

Amy DeLoof, Secretary

DATED: October 10, 2008

Michael P. Finton, President

Leigh C, Stroh, Chief Negotiator

DATED: October 10, 2008

SCHEDULE A Salary

I. Objectives:

The objectives of this salary schedule are to provide the best possible instructional services to the children of the School District by aiding in the initial selection of highly qualified teacher candidates, providing the incentive for their professional growth in service, and encouraging their retention in the school system for a reasonable period of productive service.

II. Provisions:

In order to be eligible to advance from one step on the salary schedule
to a higher step based upon the earning of additional hours of credit,
or upon receipt of a higher degree, the teacher must make written application
on forms provided by the School District and must submit written proof
of the completion of courses and/or degree requirements in the form of
an official transcript of credits from the institution from which the credits
were earned.

In order for the salary increase to be affected for the full school year, the courses must be completed prior to the beginning of that school year for Almont Community Schools. In order for the change to be affected for the second half year only, courses must be completed before the beginning of the second semester for the Almont Community School District.

If possible, such proof should be provided to the School District prior to the beginning of the first semester for which pay is requested. If it is not possible to obtain such proof prior to the beginning of the semester, the Administration should be so notified, in writing, and is to be kept informed of the effort and progress being made in obtaining such proof. Retroactive payment for such credit will be made to the beginning of the semester.

- 2. Graduate and undergraduate hours will follow the itemizing:
 - a. BA, 0-18 hours must meet Teacher Accreditation Standards set by a recognized institution.
 - b. BA, 19-33 hours shall be any graduate or undergraduate hours if part of a training program approved by a recognized institution and approved by the Superintendent of Schools as related directly to the professional responsibilities of the teacher involved.
 - c. MA level; any Masters Degree from a recognized institution. For employees hired after June 1, 1999, the Masters Degree must be related

to the field of education.

- d. MA+15 and MA+30 hours must be part of an advanced training program approved by a recognized institution and approved by the Superintendent of Schools, as directly related to the professional responsibilities of the teacher involved. In case of credits applied toward a second Masters Degree prior Board approval is required.
- 3. At the time of initial employment in the school district, an applicant's initial position on the salary schedule shall be modified by allowing schedule increment credits for one or more of the following:
 - a. Full or partial transfer of credit may be given for teaching experience in other school systems up to six (6) years.
 - b. Up to three (3) years of service in the Armed Forces of the United States. The combined credit granted a new employee under the above conditions shall not exceed an aggregate credit on the schedule for more than six (6) years.
- 4. This salary schedule applies to salary determination of all members whose services are limited to the normal school year period. Salaries of all other staff members shall be established on an individual basis.
- 5. In recognition of services to the school district, payment of 5% of the teachers last year's basic salary shall be paid upon severance, provided the teacher has been employed in the school district for at least ten (10) years.
- 6. Upon successful completion of graduate credit hours applying toward the BA+18 level and relating directly to the professional responsibilities of the teacher involved, the teacher will receive the following one-time stipends:

Nine (9) graduate credits:	\$ 350.00
Twelve (12) graduate credits:	\$ 250.00
Fifteen (15) graduate credits:	\$ 150.00

7. Upon successful completion of graduate credit hours <u>beyond</u> the MA+30 level of the contract, and relating directly to the professional responsibilities of the teacher involved, the teacher will receive the following one-time stipends:

Six (6) graduate credits:	\$300
Twelve (12) graduate credits:	\$300
Fifteen (15) graduate credits:	\$300

SCHEDULE A Year 2008-2009

	B.A 2008-09 2.00%	B.A. +18 2008-08 2.00%	MA/ BA+33 2008-09 2.00%	M.A. +15 2008-09 2.00%	M.A.+30 2008-09 2.00%
Step					·
0	35,754	37,540	39,418	41,390	43,458
1	37,540	39,418	41,390	43,458	45,633
2	39,418	41,390	43,458	45,633	47,912
3	41,390	43,458	45,633	47,912	50,307
3a	42,425	44,544	46,773	49,111	51,564
4	43,458	45,633	47,912	50,307	52,824
5	45,633	47,912	50,307	52,824	55,466
6	47,912	50,307	52,824	55,466	58,240
7	50,307	52,824	55,466	58,240	61,151
8	52,824	55,466	58,240	61,151	64,208
9	55,466	58,240	61,151	64,208	67,418
10	58,240	61,151	64,208	67,418	70,789
11	62,374	65,492	68,765	72,205	75,816

SCHEDULE B Extracurricular Duties

The following schedule sets forth additional duties in extracurricular activities or other duties for which teachers may be assigned according to Article XII, Section 9, but for which teachers shall be compensated. The amount of compensation shall be in accordance with said schedule. The following duties require a pre-arranged contract with the Board of Education.

These additional amounts shall apply only when such teacher is carrying a normal teaching load in the regular daily schedule or when the teacher is carrying a partial load for which the base salary is prorated in accordance with the salary schedule set forth in Schedule A.

The Board of Education and the Almont Education Association recognize it may be necessary to add additional activities under Schedule B. The rate for these activities will be mutually agreed upon the Association and the Board of Education. These new activities will not constitute an opening of the contract and will be limited to only those items.

1.	Vocal Music	3.500%
	Instrumental Music	5.000%
3.	Senior Class Sponsor	2.000%
	Junior Class Sponsor	1.800%
5.	Sophomore Class Sponsor	1.000%
6.	Freshman Class Sponsor	1.000%
7.	8th Grade Class Sponsor	1.000%
8.	7th Grade Class Sponsor	1.000%
9.	All School Play - (prearranged w/Principal)	1.500%
10.	Yearbook	4.000%
11.	Newspaper	1.500%
12.	Debate	2.300%
13.	Forensics	2.300%
14.	Safety Patrol	1.000%
15.	Student Council	3.000%
16.	National Honor Society	3.000%
17.	School Art Show	0.500%
18.	Academic Games	1.500%
19.	Majorettes	1.500%
20.	Science Fair	1.000%
21.	Model United Nations Sponsor	1.000%
22.	Students Against Drinking & Driving (S.A.D.D.)	1.000%
23.	Mentors	1.000%
24.	School Talent Show	0.500%
25.	Jr./Sr. High Art Show	0.500%
26.	Academic Olympiad**	1.000%

27. Reading Month	0.500%
28. Writing Festival	1.500%
29. Vocal Music Director	5.000%
30. Instrumental Music Director	6.500%
31. Clubs	1.000%
32. Learning Fair	0.500%
33. Quiz Bowl	2.000%

^{**}To be divided amongst coaches

SCHEDULE B - SPORTS

Head Soccer	6.500%
Head Basketball	8.000%
Head Football	8.000%
	6.500%
Head Wrestling Head Track	6.500%
Head Tennis	
	6.500%
Head Volleyball	8.000%
Head Baseball	6.500%
Head Softball	6.500%
Head Cross Country	4.500%
Assistant Soccer	4.500%
Assistant Varsity Basketball	6.500%
Assistant Varsity Football	6.500%
Junior Varsity Football	6.500%
Junior Varsity Basketball	6.500%
Assistant Junior Varsity Football	5.500%
Assistant Baseball	4.500%
Assistant Softball	4.500%
Freshman Football	5.500%
Freshman Basketball	5.500%
Freshman Volleyball	5.500%
Golf	4.500%
Assistant Track	4.500%
Assistant Freshman Football	4.500%
Junior Varsity Baseball	4.500%
Junior Varsity Softball	4.500%
Junior Varsity Tennis	4.500%
Junior Varsity Volleyball	6.500%
7th Grade Basketball	4.500%
8th Grade Basketball	4.500%
Varsity Cheerleading (fall)	6.500%
Varsity Cheerleading (winter)	6.500%
Junior Varsity Cheerleading (fall)	5.500%
Junior Varsity Cheerleading (winter)	5.500%

Freshman Cheerleading (fall)	1 50001
	4.500%
Freshman Cheerleading (winter)	4.500%
Junior High Cheerleading (football)	3.500%
7th Grade Cheerleading (basketball)	3.500%
8th Grade Cheerleading (basketball)	3.500%
Weight Room Instructor (seasonal)	2.000%
Elementary Basketball	2.000%
Junior High Wrestling	2.000%
Junior High Football	4.500%
Assistant Junior High Football	3.500%
Junior High Track	2.000%
Junior High Volleyball	2.000%
Summer Athletic Program	1.000%
Clubs	1.000%
	1.00078

^{*}Percentages based on the B.A. Maximum Salary

- 1. The compensation for coaches who are assigned to coach two teams in the same season will be mutually agreed upon <u>prior</u> to the coach assuming the Schedule B duties.
- 2. Head Coach assignment changes will be based upon Just Cause. Changes in any coaching assignments involving other levels will be determined by the administration on an annual basis. It is agreed that Head Coaches will have input in coaching assignments involving positions in their respective sports.
- 3. Schedule B assignments will be handled by the following procedure:
 - a. Qualified volunteers from the certified teaching staff.
 - b. Qualified volunteers from outside the system on an annual basis. In the event a volunteer from outside the system is determined to be effective in the assignment, the administrator may choose to retain the volunteer in a particular Schedule B assignment.
- 4. The parties agree that the Board may contract Schedule B positions through an outside company if preferred by the employee. In the event the Schedule B employee is building compensation toward retirement, the employee can opt to have a Schedule B contract with the School District.

SCHEDULE C Related Duties of Teachers

It is understood that pupil control immediately before, during the regular school day, and immediately after school are part of the regular teaching assignment.

The following sets forth the normal expectancy of voluntary activities to be discharged by teachers without extra compensation, except as noted in Schedule B, in accordance with Article XII, Section 9, and shall be factors in grading evaluations.

PROFESSIONAL INVOLVEMENT

Participating on committees to work and advise the Board designated supervisors who are involved in recommending:

- a. Those extracurricular activities which are most worthwhile for pupils.
- b. Studies of improved scheduling methods and procedures.

CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT

Participation and leadership on advisory committees to study and improve:

- a. Curriculum
- b. Courses of Study
- c. Techniques of teaching

The Board of Education and the Association recognize the importance of curriculum development and other activities that will benefit the effectiveness of the teaching staff. Therefore, the Board of Education may request certain teachers to work up to forty (40) hours during the summer for additional training. The rate of pay will be eighteen (\$18.00) dollars per hour.

The Board may require that certain teachers participate in summer in-service training in the event of an unsatisfactory evaluation which includes a program of improvement. Any probationary employee may be required to attend professional development should the administrator deem it necessary. Notice for any summer professional development will be provided to the teacher prior to the end of the third marking period. The scheduling of mandatory summer professional development for a teacher will be mutually agreed upon, though it is understood that the administrator may assign the schedule should attempts at a mutually agreeable time be unsuccessful.

The position of department head has been established to enhance curriculum and increase communication between and among departments and building staff members. Staff members working in this capacity will receive a 3.0% stipend of the B.A. Maximum.

SELF IMPROVEMENT

Taking of college courses to meet certification requirements, to increase knowledge of subject, and to prepare himself to be proficient in the best possible instructional methods and techniques. Participation in professional workshops is highly encouraged.

COMMUNITY CENTERED

Attendance and participation in school related parent-teacher organizations, except that teacher attendance at the building Open House shall be mandatory unless excused by the building principal.

SCHEDULE D ALMONT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Classroom Observation Report

DATE		
TEACHER:	SUBJECT:	
		To
Comments shall include examples o form.	f observed strengths and	l weaknesses in anecdotal
Techniques of Instruction:		
Classroom Management:		
Plan of Action, If Needed - Recomm	nendation for Improven	nent:
This is a professional report and mu	ust be kept in strict confi	dence.
This form is to be processed and a conference shall		
Evaluator's Copy Teacher's Copy		

SCHEDULE D ALMONT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Non-Classroom Observation Report Form

DATE:
TEACHER:
Comments shall include examples of observed strengths and weaknesses in anecdotal form.
Personal Qualities:
Organizational Skills:
Professional Related Activities: Plan of Action, if needed - Recommendations for Improvement:
Evaluator
Evaluatoi
This is a professional report and must be kept in strict confidence. This form is to be processed and a copy given to the teacher as soon as possible after a non-classroom observation has been completed and prior to the final evaluation.

Evaluator's Copy Teacher's Copy

SCHEDULE D ALMONT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Teacher Evaluation Report

Name_	Date			
School	Assignment			
Teachi	ng in Field of Preparation: Yes No			
A state	ment of explanation shall be made for each category below:			
Ι.	Techniques of Instruction (Uses instructional time effectively, communicate purpose of lessons, evaluates student progress, uses a variety of motivational techniques.)			
	ents:			
II.	Classroom Management (Assumes responsibility for discipline, asserts control in a fair manner, demonstrates flexibility in dealing with students.)			
III.	Personal Qualities (Cooperates with co-workers, exhibits mature behavior and emotional stability, maintains appropriate grooming and dress, demonstrates ability to effectively communicate - oral and written)			
Comn	nents:			
IV.	Organizational Skills (Follows building procedures, rules, regulations, directing Board policies)			

Comments:			
V.	Professional Related Activities (Student relationships, Parent-Teacher Conferences, Open Houses, IEPC Meetings, Committee work, Association activities)		
Comr	ments:		
	ional Remarks:		
Profes	ssional Assistance Provided and Recommendations:		
Classi	room Observations Were Made On:		
I rate	the performance as:		
	Satisfactory Unsatisfactory		
Person Teach	ator's Copy nnel File ner's Copy nmendations for next year on the basis of this and/or previous evaluations:		

Give P-2 Contract	_Recommend Tenure C	ontract	Continue Tenure Contract
Give P-3 Contract	Other		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	********	******	*********
Nontenure teachers very contracts or placed or rating of Unsatisfactors be recommended to the must be documented.	with a rating of Satisfactor on Tenure, whichever is a oney will be placed on Pro he Board of Education for Tenure teachers are sult. ***********************************	ry or above appropriate bationary or dismissed to predict to predi	ve will be issued Probationary 2 e. Nontenure teachers with a 2 or Probationary 3 Contracts, or eal. Areas rated Unsatisfactory rovisions set forth in the Michigan ************************************
avaluation I unders	signature does not const tand, also, that I may have ssion subsequent to the i	ve a repres	ncurrence or approval of this sentative of the Association present sroom observation.
Remarks by Teache	r:		
Date			Teacher
Date			Evaluator
This is a professio (This form is to be	nal report and must be ke processed and a copy gi	ept in stric ven to the	t confidence. teacher at the conference session.)
Evaluator's Copy Personnel File Teacher's Copy			